
 
AMENDMENT OF SOLICITATION / MODIFICATION OF 
CONTRACT 

1. Contract Number Page of Pages 

 1 2 

2. Amendment/Modification Number 
 
 

3. Effective Date 4. Requisition/Purchase   5. Solicitation Caption: Invitation for Bid (IFB) 
 
Janitorial Services 

Amendment No. 001 
 

02/09/2022   

6. Issued by: Code  7. Administered By: (If other than line 6) 
District of Columbia Public Schools (DCPS) 
Offi



 

 
 
 

 
No. Questions Answers 
01 Is the number of hours for the Base Year 

(March 15, 2022, thru September 30, 2022) 
correct for the period of performance? 

Please see the below corrections: 
CLIN 0001 – 8,000 Hours 
CLIN 0002 – 300 Hours, and  
CLIN 0003 – 3,000 Hours. 
The contract is Time & Material/Labor 
Hours.  All the quantities are estimates 
only Not To Exceed. The number of hours 
is subject to change and based solely on 
an as-needed basis. 

02 Can you clarify that vendors have to responds 
and be present on-site within an hour once 
DCPS issues a work to contractor? 

For emergency purposes only, the vendor 
is expected to assign contractors to a 
DCPS site within one to two hours of 
notification. 

03 What are DCPS policies regarding hiring our 
(contractor) employees? 

DCPS does not have a policy in place 
regarding hiring contractor employees.   

04 Can DCPS clarify if there is a specific format 
the proposal must follow? 



 

 
 
 

11 Page 1 – Does DCPS currently have a service 
provider(s) for these custodial services listed in 
the RFP? If so, can you share the service 
provider(s) and when they started with DCPS? 

Yes, DCPS is currently working with the 
TPM Group since November 2021. 

12 Page 1 – DCPS specifies “provide janitorial 
and deep cleaning custodial services 
augmentation at various DCPS schools and 
facilities as outlined in this Solicitation/Request 
for Proposal” Can you share how many schools 
are operating in the district and if the 
expectation is to provide services at any school 
location? If not, can you list the schools and 
their address locations? 

There are a total of 118 operating schools 
and on any given day may require 
support.  

13 Page 4 - B.3.1.1 The BASE YEAR - March 15, 
2022, thru September 30, 2022 
Is this the initial contract term and do the not to 
exceed total hours need to be adjusted for the 
shorter period? 

Yes, the base year will begin on March 15 
through September 30, 2022.  The initial 
contract term and do not exceed hours is 
subject to change based on an as-needed 
bases. See Question and Answer Number 
01. 

14 Page 4 - B.3.1.1 The BASE YEAR –  
Is the Emergency Labor Hours (C.2.9.3) correct 
at 5000 hours for Base Year? 

The Emergency Labor Hours is an 
estimate number of hours which is subject 
to change. See Question and Answer 
Number 01. 

15 Page 8 – Scope: 
Is the in-House custodial staff of DCPS 
affiliated with or part of an affiliated Labor 
Union? If unionized, could you share which 
Union and provide a copy of their collective 
bargaining agreement or a contact at the union 
with that information? If unionized, does the 
district have the right to subcontract and has 
that been bargained with the union for the 
district?   

Yes, DCPS custodial staff is affiliated 
with the Union - Teamsters. You can also 
download a copy of the bargaining 
agreement from DCPS website click here: 
https://dcps.dc.gov/page/dcps-union-
collective-bargaining-agreements.  

16 Page 9 - C.2.9.1 Janitorial Deep Cleaning and 

https://dcps.dc.gov/page/dcps-union-collective-bargaining-agreements
https://dcps.dc.gov/page/dcps-union-collective-bargaining-agreements


 

 
 
 

18 Page 14 – The contractor must have a minimum 
of 10 contract staff available upon award of the 
contract. 
Are the contractors staff members deployed to 
the entire district each day for the custodial and 
deep cleaning/laborer services? 
Does DCPS expect that need to vary daily 
above or below the 10-
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